
Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the 
use of social media by anyone attending.  This does not 
apply to any part of the meeting that is held in private 
session.

Please ask for:
Gurdip Paddan

9 January 2019

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE to be held on Thursday 17 January 2019 at 7.30 pm in 
the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 
6AE

Yours faithfully

Corporate Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

A G E N D A
PART 1

1.  SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS 

To note any substitution of Committee members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19-22.

2.  APOLOGIES 

3.  MINUTES 

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2018 
(previously circulated).

4.  ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)

Report of the Executive Director – Public Protection, Planning and Law and 
Administration which lists the actions from previous meetings and their current 
status.

Public Document Pack



5.  NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 12 

6.  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS 

To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this agenda.

7.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS 

Up to fifteen minutes will be available for questions from members of the public on 
issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 7 - 18)

Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by the Corporate Management Team and Heads 
of Service.  These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in 
November 2018 and reflect the assessments in place for the quarter October 2018 
to January 2019.

9.  SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 19 - 28)

Report of the Shared Internal Audit Service which provides an update on the 
progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan for 2018/19 as at 4 January 2019.

10.  EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

Verbal update report from Ernst and Young LLP.

11.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING - QUARTER 4 
DECEMBER 2018 (Pages 29 - 44)

Ernst and Young LLP sector briefing.

12.  SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION 

13.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee is asked to resolve:

That under Section 100(A) (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 14 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A (3) and Part I of Schedule 12A of the said Act as 
amended.

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.



PART II

14.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR 

Circulation: Councillors G.Michaelides (Chairman)
S.Markiewicz (Vice-Chairman)
J.Boulton
J.Broach

S.Roberts
S.Wrenn
P.Zukowskyj

D.Bell (Executive Member, Resources)

Corporate Management Team
Press and Public (except Part II Items)

If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact 
Gurdip Paddan, Governance Service on 01707357349 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Gurdip Paddan
Executive Member: Councillor D.Bell
No Specific Ward 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 17 JANUARY 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE)

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report 
lists the actions from the meeting on 1 October 2018, those responsible for 
completing each action and its current status.

2 Recommendation(s)

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting 
of this Committee on 1 October 2018.

Minute Action Responsible
Status/
Date Completed

43 RISK MANAGEMENT
Requested -  proportion of arrears that were 
due to the implementation of universal Credit

Stuart 
Pearson

An answer has 
been provided 
to the 
Committee

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I
Main author: Andy Cremer
Executive Member: Fiona Thomson

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 17TH JANUARY 2019
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE)

RISK MANAGEMENT

1 Executive Summary

1.1 This report brings to Members’ attention the current strategic and top operational risks 
facing the Council, as determined by Corporate Management Team and Heads of Service.  
These risks have been reviewed at the performance clinic in November 2018 and reflect 
the assessments in place for the quarter October 2018 to January 2019.  

2 Recommendation

2.1 Members  are asked to:

 Note the attached current Strategic Risk Register and top operational risks, and 
particularly:

 Note comments in respect of each risk where shown.

3 Explanation

3.1 Appendix A shows the strategic risk register, which was developed following an Executive 
Board workshop in January 2017, and which has been refined since.  Each strategic risk 
has ownership by a Corporate Director and an Executive Member.  Appendix B shows the 
top operational risks.Members should note that the scoring methodology is now impact2 x 
likelihood, which will reflect in the scores, for example a risk of impact = 4 and likelihood – 
4 will now score 64, not 16 as previously.  The scoring table is as follows:

  
Likelihood

Im
pa

ct

25

16

9

4

1

50

32

18

8

2

60

48

27

12

3

100

64

36

16

4

125

80

45

20

5

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



4 Legal Implications

4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “[a] relevant authority must ensure 
that it has a sound system of internal control which [among other matters] includes 
effective arrangements for the management of risk.”

5 Financial Implications

5.1 There are none directly arising from this report, though of course any risk event may have 
its own financial consequences.

6 Risk Management Implications

6.1 Failing to maintain adequate and effective arrangements for the management of risk may 
lead to risk events not being foreseen, an inadequate response to a risk event occurring 
and a failure to exploit opportunities.

7 Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1 None.

8 Procurement Implications

8.1 None.

9 Climate Change Implications

9.1 None.

10 Health and Wellbeing Implications

10.1 None.

11 Communication and Engagement

11.1 None.

12 Link to Corporate Priorities

12.1 The subject of this report supports all council priorities in that the effective management of 
risk is essential to the achievement of objectives.

13 Equality and Diversity

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with the 
proposals that are set out in this report as it relates purely to monitoring information.

Name of Author: Andy Cremer
Title:  Risk and Resilience Manager

Date: November 2018

Background Papers:

Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register July 2018  
Appendix B – Top operational risks July 2018

Page 8



Appendix A:Risk Report

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Community Consultation and Engagement
Description: Failure to properly consult customers in line
with legislative and regulatory requirements (as
appropriate to relevant service areas). Failure to involve
communities when planning services. Consequences:
Intervention by regulatory bodies, Legal - challenge,
Reputational damage, Additional costs, Inadequate
service shaping

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Alliance Strategy

Borough Panel

Corporate Strategy - Customer
Services Strategy

Corporate Strategy - Tenant
Involvement Strategy (Housing)

Policy and Procedure Framework

Regular consultation exercises carried
out by services

Tenants’ Panel

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: New recent consultation exercises:
Customer Services Strategy - agreeing the
council's principles of customer services Equality
Scheme - agreeing the council's equality
objectives

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 16:56:35

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned Housing
Property Assets Description: Failure to provide and
maintain council housing property assets Taking
opportunities to invest in assets. Consequences:
Increased homelessness, Community impact, Economic
development, Unsafe assets

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Housing and Homelessness Strategy

HRA Asset Strategy/Business Plan

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work is continuing to develop the
Housing and Homelessness Strategy The Older
Persons' Housing Strategy is in the
implementation stage and this includes the re-
development of Minster House The HRA
Business Plan is in development, to be launched
in the autumn/winter of 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:00:26

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Equality and Diversity Description: The
council failing to comply with its legal and moral
obligations to customers, staff, partners, Members and
the wider community. Consequences: Legal - Litigation,
Additional costs, Reputational damage

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Equalities Impact Assessments

Equalities Training

Equality Group

HR Policies (overall framework)

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Member training taking place on 16
July 2018 Equality Scheme will be going to full
council 17 September 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:03:54

P
age 9



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Safeguarding Description: Failure to meet
obligations in respect of children, vulnerable adults and
persons vulnerable to radicalisation. Consequences:
Undetected Abuse, Legal - Litigation, Reputational
damage

Simone
Chinman
Russell

Safeguarding Action Plan

Safeguarding Policies

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The Safeguarding Childrens and
Safeguarding Adults at Risk policies have been
developed and approved by council. New
Reporting Pathways have been developed and
published Training is underway for all members
of staff - training is mandatory Members training
will be refreshed and delivered in 2018

Comment Last Updated: 09/07/2018 17:08:21

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Change Management Description: A new
oneteam culture and set of behaviours have been rolled
out across the council and are now being embedded to
support our modernisation and improvement journey.
This risk addresses the consequences of any failure to
robustly manage change. Consequences: Inadequate
service shaping, Additional costs, Reputational damage

Rob Bridge Chief Executive Briefings

Communication

LGA Membership

Peer Challenge

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

COMMENT: NONE

COMMENT LAST UPDATED: NONE

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Staff/Workforce Description: Failure to
recruit or retain staff with key skills. Lack of resources
due to high levels of sickness, turnover or industrial
action. Failure to develop and train existing staff. Breach
of legislation or failure to follow our HR policies. Impact
of Council Consequences: Legal - Litigation, HR - High
Staff Turnover, Low morale, Additional costs

Nick Long Apprenticeship Scheme

Corporate Governance - Management
Assurance Statement

Departmental Training Plans

HR - Agency Staff Policy

HR - Recruitment and Selection
Process

HR - Sickness Absence Policy

HR - Workforce Development Strategy

Training and Awareness of HR Staff

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Recruitment remains a challenge in
certain areas

Comment Last Updated: 05/07/2018 10:23:04

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls Current Score Latest Comment and comment date

P
age 10



Strategic - Elections Description: Failure to organise and
deliver a successful election Consequences: Reputational
damage, Legal - challenge, Additional costs

Nick Long Corporate Governance - Risk
Management Process

Elections - Managed Handover

Elections - Project Plan in Place

Staff

Training - Electoral Services

32

Indicator

3

Comment: We are monitoring the current
situation carefully

Comment Last Updated: 05/07/2018 10:25:53

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Prevent Description: Not properly
implementing the government’s ‘Prevent’ agenda to
address the risks of radicalisation. Consequences:
Reputational damage, Undetected Abuse, Prevent
Delayed referral to Channel, Prevent - lack of staff
awareness, Poor partnership working

Nick Long Prevent - Channel

Prevent - Lease and Hire Agreements

Prevent - Nominated Lead Officer for
Prevent

Prevent - Security and Terrorism
implications in report template

Prevent - Venue Guidance

Prevent - WRAP workshops

Prevent matters discussed at
Safeguarding meetings.

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: WRAP sessions are being held
monthly, and we are also training the local Police
Community Support Officers. The Risk and
Resilience Manager is now a member of the
county Prevent Board, which meets quarterly.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:58:00

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Corporate Resilience Description: Failure to
meet the requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act
2004, including the material failure or inadequacy of
plans Failure to respond appropriately to a civil
emergency or business continuity incident, including
the duty of care to the community. Consequences:
Community impact, Economic development, Unsafe
assets, Customer dissatisfaction, Reputational damage,
Poor partnership working, Intervention by regulatory
bodies

Nick Long Resilience - Business Continuity
Management Process

Resilience - Care of People Plan

Resilience - Crisis Support Team

Resilience - Extended Floodline

Resilience - Local Resilience Forum

Resilience - Resilient
Telecommunications

Resilience - Training and Exercising

Resilience - WHBC Emergency Plan

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A table top exercise was held on April
12th and a live exercise is being held on
September 13th. Our training programme
continues, and we have delivered sessions in
partnership with St Albans District Council. The
Emergency Plan will be reviewed during August.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:55:25

P
age 11



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Health and Safety Description: Failure to
maintain an adequate and effective safety management
system within the Council, including structures,
processes, control measures and allocations of
responsibilities and ensuring competence of employees,
contractors and service providers. Consequences: H&S -
Injuries and ill health, Lost productivity, Sickness
absence, Legal - Litigation, Intervention by regulatory
bodies, Reputational damage

Nick Long H&S - Collective Responsibility of
Executive Board

H&S - Corporate Health and Safety
Policy

H&S - Inspection and auditing

H&S - Map of the extent of the
undertaking

H&S - Periodic Inspection of plant and
equipment.

H&S - Risk and Resilience Team

H&S - Risk Assessment Policy

H&S - Safety Director Role

H&S - Staff Induction and Training

Current Score

16

Indicator

2

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Policy reviews continue and are on
target. A new apprentice has commenced in the
Risk and Resilience Team and is contributing
effectively to the work of the team.

Comment Last Updated: 03/07/2018 09:56:45

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Local Plan Description: Risk that Local Plan
will be found unsound. Inspector has asked Council to
find at least 4,000 more homes in plan period, by
carrying out new Green Belt Study. New NPPF likely to
introduce penalties if councils do not meet housing needs.
Consequences: Economic development, Financial - affects
on receipts, Economic - inward investment, Economic -
local infrastructure, Economic - new facilities,
Environment - hostile developments, Economic - loss of
funding, Reputational damage

Nick Long Planning - Committees

Planning - Consultation

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Project Plan

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: The public examination is ongoing.
The inspector has asked the Council to carry out
a further green belt study to help identify sites
for additional housing, to reach the objective
assessment of need for 16,000 homes. There is a
risk that the plan will be found unsound if the
Council does not seek to meet this level of need.

Comment Last Updated: 19/07/2018 18:46:30

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Finance Description: Plans for meeting the
growing budget gap are not delivered on time to ensure
continued sufficient resources to pay for services.
Consequences: Finance - WHBC runs out of money,
Reputational damage, Service delivery - loss/reduction,
Financial - affects on receipts, Service delivery - can't
met demand

Ka Ng Finance - Annual Governance
Statement

Finance - budget challenge process

Finance - budget preparation process

Finance - budgetary control by
managers

Finance - capital programme

Finance - external audit

Finance - Finance Procedure Rules

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a challenge to meet the
targets, but we have a large number of robust
controls and processes in place in order for us to
meet the savings requirements. Work is
underway on the 2019/20 budget, with a review
currently being undertaken of the medium term
financial strategy, and a review of recent
governmant consultations on grant funding.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:13:21

P
age 12



Finance - Financial Information
System (Agresso)

Finance - HRA Business Plan

Finance - internal audit

Finance - Medium Term Financial Plan

Finance - Treasury Management
Policy

Finance - use and control of reserves
and balances

Property - Asset Management Plan

Description of Risk Risk
Manager

Controls

Strategic - Communication Description: Failure to
communicate the Council's priorities, to actively manage
the Council's reputation, to manage the Council's
messages, to mainstream communications and build
ownership and consensus,to consider communications, or
involve the Comms Team. Consequences: Reputational
damage, Loss of trust, Comms - inability to manage
message

Ka Ng Comms - communication plan

Comms - Communications Team

Comms - Corporate Communications
Strategy

Comms - media monitoring

Comms - media trained staff and
Members

Comms - surveys

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A fully staffed Communications team
which meets the needs of all council services
(including the recently reintegrated housing ones)
has led to a re-evaluation of this risk. Relations
with local media outlets also remain good at this
time. This is in spite of some challenging
communications issues over 2017-18.

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 12:20:16

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - ICT Failure Description: ICT Failure Critical
failure of ICT services, for example due to virus attack,
and ransomware virus attacks, which target computers
running Microsoft Windows encrypting the personal
documents , lack of network capacity, hacking, hardware
failure, etc. Consequences: ICT - loss of service

Ka Ng ICT - database updates

ICT - Disaster Recovery Plan

ICT - ICT Strategy

ICT - infrastructure review

ICT - malware detection

ICT - Temporary PSTN connection

Current Score

32

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: There is a continual battle against
attacks, but we have a large number of robust
controls and processes in place in order for us to
say we are as protected as we can be, and the
likelihood is significantly reduced because of this.

Comment Last Updated: 13/02/2018 11:42:18

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls Current Score Latest Comment and comment date

P
age 13



Strategic - Data Protection Description: The new General
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) will replace the
current Data Protection Act from May 18. It contains
some onerous obligations that will have an immediate
impact. As we handle people’s data we are responsible for
keeping it safe. Consequences: Legal - Litigation,
Intervention by regulatory bodies, Reputational damage,
Legal - challenge, Additional costs

Ka Ng Governance - Data Protection Policies

ICT - data encryption

48

Indicator

3

Comment: GDPR legislation came into effect in
May 2018. In preparation for this a number of
policies and procedures were implemented, and
teh Data Protection Officer worked with services
to identify the areas of greater risk. Since the
start of this process, the higher risks have been
adressed, and work continues with services to
minimise risks where possible. Training has been
rolled out to all staff & Councillors.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:16:31

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Management of Council Owned Non-Housing
Property Assets Description: Failure to provide and
maintain council owned non-housing property assets.
Taking opportunities to invest in assets. Consequences:
Economic development, Unsafe assets

Ka Ng Asset Management Plan

Property Portfolio

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Work continues on th property
investment project, with a number of potential
sites which will meet multiple corporate
objectives. The Council has a capital work
programme in place to adequately maintain its
non-housing assets, and continues to be
responsive to day to day repairs and
maintenance.

Comment Last Updated: 30/07/2018 10:10:17

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Strategic - Effects of Brexit Description: Preparing the
borough and council for exiting the EU by understanding
the effect on 1) communities and residents, 2) businesses
and economy, and 3) The council, along with any actions
we need to take. Consequences: Additional costs,
Economic - inward investment, Economic development,
Community impact, Economic - loss of funding

Rob Bridge Brexit - appropriate action plan to be
produced

Corporate Governance - engagement
with Councillors

ECMT Brexit Workshop

LGA Membership

LGA support and briefings

Current Score

48

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

COMMENT: NONE

COMMENT LAST UPDATED: NONE

P
age 14



Risk Report

51

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Tree failure Description: The risk of failure of a tree with
resultant risk to property or life Consequences: H&S - Injuries and ill
health, Legal - Litigation, Additional costs

Ann Macdonald Planning - Contractors

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - Risk Assessment

Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Constant monitoring of trees under WHBC
management identifies diseased trees early. The effective
management results in fewer tree failures during storm
events

Comment Last Updated: 12/10/2018 17:06:13

79

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Mature Lombardy Poplars Description: Risk of failure of
mature Lombardy Poplar trees Consequences: Unsafe assets, H&S -
Injuries and ill health, Legal - Litigation, Reputational damage

Ann Macdonald Planning - Contractors

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Planning - Risk Assessment

Planning - Trees

Planning - Volunteers

Current Score

100

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: WHBC and HCC Highways trees will be felled by
31 December 2018, weather permitting. Felling of trees on
Greenwich Leisure grounds will commence in the new year.
Replanting will follow and be completed by 31 March 2019
(over and above 300 urban trees)

Comment Last Updated: 12/10/2018 17:10:27

122

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Housing land supply Description: Failure to maintain rolling
five year housing land supply, which puts Council at risk of having to
approve undesirable developments Consequences: No consequence

Sue Tiley Planning - AMR

Planning - Qualifications and Training

Current Score

80

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Risk may increase due to the NPPF and
definition of what is a deliverable site. May make it more
challenging to identify sites for 5 year plan. Will review the
outcome of the ENTech House public enquiry with a view to
improving evidence of deliverability.

Comment Last Updated: 12/10/2018 17:15:36

129

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Housing Development - Availability of sites / land / assets Description:
Lack of suitable sites for affordable homes for development . either for
direct provision by the council or disposal and grant funding to
Registered Providers at the scale that is required . Sites need to be
deliverable , suitable to attract interest Consequences: Increased
homelessness, Financial - financial penalties, Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Poor partnership working

Jeremy Morton Executive Board

Current Score

64

Indicator

1

Page 1 of 3

P
age 15



Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Housing Development - Availability of sites / land / assets Description:
Lack of suitable sites for affordable homes for development . either for
direct provision by the council or disposal and grant funding to
Registered Providers at the scale that is required . Sites need to be
deliverable , suitable to attract interest Consequences: Increased
homelessness, Financial - financial penalties, Reputational damage,
Additional costs, Poor partnership working

Jeremy Morton Executive Board

Current Score

64

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: A new post has recently been recruited to the
Housing Development Team. The postholder will have a
focus on identifying new opportunities and forming
partnerships/relationships with local land owners/agents A
range of initiatives are in place to secure sites / land / assets
- that include- a review by consultants of the councils HRA
assets ( not general fund ) , confirmation via resources and
corporate property that a limted number of redundant
garage sites might be appropriate for development.- active
engagement with all our external Registered Provider
partners on new opportunities- direct engagement with
private developers on opportunities . There are a number of
pipe line initiatiives currently being considered with the
expectation that some of these will be feasible / viable and
progress to on site delivery . However hosingdevelopment is
extremely complex with long timefrmes and the risk to the
coucncil continues to be high

Comment Last Updated: 26/09/2018 13:21:25

133

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Housing Development - delivery of affordable homes on S106 sites
Description: Housing development - securing RP interest in sites and
developers include affordable homes Consequences: Increased
homelessness, Service delivery - can't met demand, Additional costs,
Reputational damage, Financial Implications

Jeremy Morton Housing and Homelessness Strategy

Planning - Evidence

Planning - Section 106 and CIL

Registered Provider Frame work Group

Staff

Use of consultants

Current Score

64

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: We have been awarded an LGA grant to
commission work by a specialist consultant, to help us
identify ways to support the highest level of affordable
housing development. The report will be available in draft at
the end of February. delivery of affordable homes on S106
sites is governed by planning policy / hoinsg needs evidence
but impacted on by scheme viability and independant
viabailty work The developemnt team negotiate the
affordable requirement with the objective of securing a
policy compliant scheme. This is not allways possibel.
Inorder to assit and mitigate we are able to consider funding
of affordabel homes as part of the coucls AHP and use of our
allowed amounts of right to buy receipts. However we must
pay regard tro VFM and costs of development It is not
always possible to secure a fully compliant schemes. The
borough is an attrcative place for developers to build
although we are currently awaiting the outcome of the local
plan and new sites being agreed . Housing delivery is also
impacted on by market conditions and property values

Comment Last Updated: 26/09/2018 14:03:54

165

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Housing Management - Universal Credit impact on arrears Description:
The impact of legislative universal credit welfare changes on the level of
tenant rent account debt. Change introduced December 2017,
Consequences: Financial Implications

Simon Kiff Management of Housing Operations

Current Score

80

Indicator

1

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Monthly meetings with the DWP are on going
where difficult cases are discussed. The DWP have also
provided training on supporting tenants to make new
applications. Since August an income Officer has been
placed within the Hatfield Job centre to help build relations
with the DWP and provide direct support for residents at
the point of contact. We have introduced a new information
letter which is sent out as soon as we are aware that the
resident has made a claim for UC. This letter advises of
tenants responsibilities and how we can support them.
Current number of tenants in receipt of UC are 562 with 465
in arrears (82.74%). Arrears levels are currently 10.3%
totalling £309K, showing a positive trend compared to
quarter 1 performance (11.2%). The performance continues
to be monitored on a weekly and monthly basis at
operational level.

231

Page 2 of 3

P
age 16



Comment Last Updated: 10/10/2018 16:24:48

Description of Risk Risk Manager Controls

Planning - Hackitt Review Description: Proposes tighter regulations for
high rise residential buildings (10+ storeys) and other complex buildings.
Proposes that LPAs should help to identify such buildings. Proposes that
LPAs should consult fire/rescue bodies at pre-app and plan app stage.
Consequences: No consequence

Colin Haigh Planning - Consultation

Current Score

50

Indicator

3

Latest Comment and comment date

Comment: Hackitt Review proposes that LPAs should
identify high rise residential buildings (10+ storeys) and
other complex buildings that warrant tighter fire safety
regulations. LPA considers that Queensway House and
Goldings House are only residential buildings of 10+
storeys. LPA provisionally considers that Hatfield Galleria,
WGC QEII hospital, One Hatfield hospital, Uni of Herts
campus and RVC campus may be complex buildings, due to
their size, location and/or mix of living, working and
patients. There may also be some specialist housing
schemes that are complex buildings.

Comment Last Updated: 28/09/2018 14:02:11

Page 3 of 3

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council
Audit Committee Progress Report

17 January 2019

Recommendations

Members are recommended to:
 Note the Internal Audit Progress Report for the 

period to 4 January 2019, and
 Note the proposed amendments to the 

2018/19 Annual Audit Plan.

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



Page 2

Contents

1 Introduction and Background
1.1 Purpose
1.2 Background

2 Audit Plan Update
2.1 Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Findings
2.7 Proposed Amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit 

Plan
2.9 High Priority Recommendations
2.12 Performance Management

Appendices

A   Progress against the 2018/19 Audit Plan

B   2018/19 Audit Plan Start Dates Agreed with 
Management

C Assurance and Finding Definitions 2018/19

Page 20



Page 3

1. Introduction and Background
Purpose of Report

1.1 This report details:

a) Progress made by the Shared Internal Audit Service (SIAS) in delivering 
the Council’s Annual Audit Plan for 2018/19 as at 4 January 2019.

b) Findings for the period 14 September 2018 to 4 January 2019.
c) Details of changes to the planned start dates of audits from the approved 

2018/19 Audit Plan.
d) Proposed amendments to the 2018/19 Annual Audit report
e) An update on performance management information as at 4 January 2019.

Background

1.2 The 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting on 22 March 2018.

1.3 The Audit Committee receives periodic updates of progress against the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan. This is the third report giving feedback on the 
delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.

1.4 The work of Internal Audit is required to be reported to a Member Body so that 
the Council has an opportunity to review and monitor an essential component 
of corporate governance and gain assurance that its internal audit provision is 
fulfilling its statutory obligations. It is considered good practice that progress 
reports also include proposed amendments to the agreed annual audit plan.

2. Audit Plan Update
Delivery of Audit Plan and Key Audit Findings

2.1 As at 4 January 2019, 69% of the 2018/19 Audit Plan days had been 
delivered (the calculation excludes contingency).  Appendix A provides a 
status update on each individual project within the audit plan.

2.2 The following final reports have been issued since 14 September 2018 (cut-off 
date for the SIAS Update Report for 1 October 2018 Audit Committee):

Audit Title Date of 
Issue

Assurance 
Level

Number of 
Recommendations

Parking Permits October 
2018 Satisfactory 1 Medium, 1 Low

Street Scene Procurement October 
2018 Good 1 Low

Page 21



Page 4

Customer Service 3C’s October 
2018 Good 2 Low

LEP Grant October 
2018 N/A None.

Budget Monitoring November 
2018 Good None.

DFG Grant Certification November 
2018 N/A None.

2.3 Details on the status of all audits in this year’s plan can be found in Appendix 
A.

2.4 In respect of the 2018/19 plan, audits continue to be progressed in line with 
the agreed audit plan with eleven audits at final report stage, seven audits at 
draft report stage, three audits in fieldwork, four with terms of reference issued 
and a further three audits at planning stage. Details of the status of all audits 
in this year’s plan can be found in Appendix A of this report.

Changes to Projected Audit Start Dates

2.5 To help the Committee assess progress in delivering the 2018/19 Audit Plan, 
Appendix B details agreed start dates. These dates were agreed with 
management and resources allocated accordingly. This schedule was 
designed to facilitate smoother delivery of the audit plan through the year.

2.6 There are no proposed changes to audit start dates to be reported to the 
Committee.

Proposed Amendments to Audit Plan

2.7 Since the September meeting of this Committee, there has not been any 
changes to the 2018/19 Audit Plan agreed with Officers of the Council.

2.8 Contingency in the 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan for the Council currently stands 
at 8 days.

High Priority Recommendations

2.9 Members will be aware that a Final Audit Report is issued when it has been 
agreed by management; this includes an agreement to implement the 
recommendations that have been made. 

2.10 The Council’s Principal Governance Officer is responsible for following up the 
implementation status of internal audit recommendations. 

2.11 We have not made any new high priority recommendation as a consequence 
of the work undertaken in the audits detailed in paragraph 2.2 above.

Page 22



Page 5

Performance Management

Reporting of Audit Plan Delivery Progress

2.12 Performance indicators and associated targets are approved by the SIAS 
Board on an annual basis. The actual performance for the Council against the 
targets that are monitored in year is set out in the table below.

2.13 As at 4 January 2019, actual performance for Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council against the targets that can be monitored in year was as shown in the 
table below:

Performance Indicator Annual 
Target

Profiled 
Target to 4 

January 
2019

Actual to 4 
January 2019

1. Planned Days – percentage of 
actual billable days against 
planned chargeable days 
completed (excluding unused 
contingency)

95%
75%

(232 / 309 
days)

69%
(214.5 / 309 days)

2. Planned Projects – percentage 
of actual completed projects to 
draft report stage against planned 
completed projects

95%
67%

(20 / 30  
projects)

60%
(18 / 30 projects)

3. Client Satisfaction with 
Conduct of the Audit – 
percentage of client satisfaction 
questionnaires returned at 
‘satisfactory’ level 

100% 100%
100%

(4 / 10 survey’s 
returned)

4. Number of High Priority Audit 
Recommendations agreed 95% 95%

N/A – No high 
priority 

recommendations 
made

2.14 In addition, the performance targets listed below are annual in nature.  
Performance against these targets will be reported on in the 2018/19 Head of 
Assurance’s Annual Report:

 5. External Auditors’ Satisfaction – the Annual Audit Letter should 
formally record whether or not the External Auditors are able to rely upon 
the range and the quality of SIAS’ work.

 6. Annual Plan – prepared in time to present to the March meeting of each 
Audit Committee.  If there is no March meeting then the plan should be 
prepared for the first meeting of the financial year.

 7. Head of Assurance’s Annual Report – presented at the Audit 
Committee’s first meeting of the civic year.

Page 23



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 6

2018/19 SIAS Audit Plan

RECOMMENDATIONS
AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 

ASSURANCE C H M L

AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTS

Key Financial Systems
General Ledger 8 Yes 7 Draft Report Issued
Debtors 10 Yes 7 In Fieldwork
Creditors 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued
Treasury Management 6 Yes 0.5 ToR Issued
Council Tax 10 Yes 7 In Fieldwork
NDR 10 Yes 9.5 Draft Report Issued
Benefits 10 Yes 0.5 ToR Issued
Payroll 6 Yes 0.5 ToR Issued
Housing Rents 10 Yes 1.5 ToR Issued
Operational Audits

Budget Monitoring Good 0 0 0 0 13 Yes 13 Final Report Issued

Community Protection Notices Satisfactory 0 0 1 2 12 Yes 12 Final Report Issued
Public Health 10 Yes Allocated
Customer Services – 3C’s Good 0 0 0 2 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Voids Management 12 Yes 0.5 In Planning
Housing Allocations 12 Yes 0.5 In Planning
General Data Protection 
Regulations 8 Yes 6 In Fieldwork

Agency Staff 12 Yes 11.5 Draft Report Issued

P
age 24



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 7

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

Use of Consultants (including 
solicitors, barristers and 
management consultants)

10 Yes 0.5 In Planning

Health and Safety Satisfactory 0 0 2 1 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
Parking Permits Satisfactory 0 0 1 1 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
DFG Grant Certification Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 2 Yes 2 Final Report Issued
Fire Safety Satisfactory 0 0 3 0 10 Yes 10 Final Report Issued
LEP Grant Not Assessed 0 0 0 0 5 Yes 5 Final Report Issued
Procurement / Contracts
Street Scene Contract / 
Procurement Good 0 0 0 1 5 Yes 5 Final Report Issued

Counter Fraud
Anti-Fraud Arrangements – 
Follow Up 0 Yes Cancelled

Corporate Governance and Risk Management
Corporate Governance and 
Risk Management 5 Yes Allocated

IT Audits
Incident Management 11 Yes 10.5 Draft Report Issued
Software Licence Management 11 Yes 10.5 Draft Report Issued
PSN Accreditation 0 Yes Cancelled
Shared Learning and Joint Reviews
Joint Reviews 2
Shared Learning 3 1.5 Through Year

P
age 25



APPENDIX A – PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Page 8

AUDITABLE AREA LEVEL OF 
ASSURANCE

RECOMMENDATIONS AUDIT 
PLAN 
DAYS

LEAD 
AUDITOR 

ASSIGNED

BILLABLE 
DAYS 

COMPLETED
STATUS / 

COMMENTSC H M L

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity

Contingency & Ad Hoc Activity 8 As Required

Strategic Support
Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
2017/18 5 Yes 5 Complete

Audit Committee 8 Yes 8 Through Year
Client Meetings 6 Yes 6 Through Year
Liaison with External Audit 1 Yes 1 Through Year
Progress Monitoring 8 Yes 8 Through Year
SIAS Development 5 Yes 5 Through Year
2019/20 Audit Planning 5 Yes 2.5 Through Year
2017/18 Projects requiring completion
Community Engagement 4 Yes 3.5 Draft Report Issued
Tree Management Satisfactory 0 0 1 3 8 Yes 8 Final Report Issued
Standards and Ethics Satisfactory 0 0 0 3 7.5 Yes 7.5 Final Report Issued
Finalisation of Projects Not Applicable 0.5 Yes 0.5 Complete
Total – Welwyn Hatfield B.C.  0 0 8 13 317 214.5

P
age 26



APPENDIX B – 2018/19 AUDIT PLAN START DATES AGREED WITH MANAGEMENT

Page 9

April May June July August September

Agency Staff

Draft Report Issued

Community Protection 
Notices

Final Report Issued

Parking Permits

Final Report Issued

Customer Services – 3C’s

Final Report Issued

Budget Monitoring

Final Report Issued

Use of Consultants

In Planning

Tree Management (17/18)

Final Report Issued

Health and Safety

Final Report Issued

PSN Accreditation

Cancelled

Street Scene 
Procurement

Final Report Issued

Incident Management

Draft Report Issued

Anti-Fraud Arrangements 
Follow-Up

Cancelled

Standards & Ethics 
(17/18)

Final Report Issued

LEP Grant

Final Report Issued

Fire Safety

Final Report Issued

DFG Grant Certification

Final Report Issued

Community Engagement 
(17/18)

Draft Report Issued

October November December January February March

General Ledger

Draft Report Issued

Treasury Management

ToR Issued

Benefits

ToR Issued

Voids Management

In Planning
Public Health Corporate Governance 

and Risk Management

Debtors

In Fieldwork

Council Tax

In Fieldwork

Payroll

ToR Issued

Housing Allocations

In Planning

Creditors

Draft Report Issued

NDR

Draft Report Issued

Housing Rents

ToR Issued

Software Licence 
Management

Draft Report Issued

GDPR – deferred from 
April

In Fieldwork

P
age 27



APPENDIX C – ASSURANCE AND FINDINGS DEFINITIONS 2018/19

Page 10

Assurance Level Definition

Good
The design and operation of the internal control framework is effective, thereby ensuring that the key 
risks in scope are being well managed and core objectives will likely be achieved. There are minor 
reportable audit findings.

Satisfactory The internal control framework is largely working well in managing the key risks in scope, with some 
audit findings related to the current arrangements.  

Limited
The system of internal control is only partially effective, with important audit findings in key areas. 
Improvement in the design and/or operation of the control environment is necessary to gain assurance 
risks are being managed to an acceptable level, and core objectives will be achieved.

No The system of internal control has serious gaps, and controls are not effective in managing the key risks 
in scope. It is highly unlikely that core objectives will be met without urgent management intervention.

Priority Level Definition

C
or

po
ra

te

Critical
Audit findings which, in the present state, represent a serious risk to the organisation as a 
whole, i.e. reputation, financial resources and / or compliance with regulations. Management 
action to implement the appropriate controls is required immediately.

High
Audit findings indicate a serious weakness or breakdown in control environment, which, if 
untreated by management intervention, is highly likely to put achievement of core service 
objectives at risk. Remedial action is required urgently.

Medium
Audit findings which, if not treated by appropriate management action, are likely to put 
achievement of some of the core service objectives at risk. Remedial action is required in a 
timely manner.Se

rv
ic

e

Low / Advisory
Audit findings indicate opportunities to implement good or best practice, which, if adopted, will 
enhance the control environment. The appropriate solution should be implemented as soon as 
is practically possible.

P
age 28



Local Government 
Audit Committee 
Briefing
Quarter 4, December 2018

Page 29

Agenda Item 11



Contents 
at a glance

Government and 
economic news

2

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

5

Regulation news 7

Other 8

Key questions 
for the Audit 
Committee

10

Find out 
more

10

Page 30



1Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

This sector briefing is one of 
the ways that we support you 
and your organisation in an 
environment that is constantly 
changing and evolving.

It covers issues which may have an impact on your 
organisation, the Local Government sector, and 
the audits that we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public sector 
audit specialists within EY’s national Government 
and Public Sector (GPS) team, using our public 
sector knowledge, and EY’s wider expertise across 
UK and international business. 

The briefings bring together not only technical 
issues relevant to the Local Government sector but 
wider matters of potential interest to you and your 
organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of 
the articles featured can be found at the end of 
the briefing. 

We hope that you find the briefing informative 
and should this raise any issues that you would 
like to discuss further, please contact your local 
audit team.

Page 31



2 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

EY Club Item
The latest EY ITEM Club forecast casts a cloudier outlook for the 
UK economy which will have implications for Local Authorities. 
This partly reflects increased uncertainties about Brexit, due 
to the elevated risk of the UK leaving the EU without a deal. It 
also reflects a more challenging global outlook, and continued 
pressures on consumer purchasing power. 

The forecast has slightly downgraded the UK’s economic 
prospects for 2018 and 2019, with GDP growth for 2018 trimmed 
from 1.4% to 1.3% — the slowest rate of expansion since 2009. 
While performance improved in Q2 and Q3, the outlook has since 
become less certain.

One positive note for UK economy is the robust growth in labour 
demand. The unemployment rate remained at 4.0% for the three 
months to July, the lowest level since February 1975. Over the 
same period, the number of vacancies in the UK rose to 833,000, 
highlighting the tightness in the labour market.

As shown in Figure 1, it appears that the spare capacity in the 
labour market created during the crisis has been largely absorbed. 
The Bank of England’s (BoE) recent report about the labour 
market suggests that very limited slack remains — a BoE’s regional 
Agents survey found that 40% of companies are finding it harder 
to recruit and retain staff compared to last year.

Government and 
economic news

UK: Unemployment rate
Figure 1

Labour 
Force 

Survey

Claimant count

Source: EY ITEM Club

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0
2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

%

Forecast

Page 32



3Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

The recruitment challenges facing employers are well known by 
local authorities. An expanding and ageing population will only add 
to the demand pressures, while the supply of workers may be at 
risk due to the impact of Brexit on migration of EEA workers.

Theory suggests that, with unemployment falling and vacancies 
rising, there is little scope for further labour market tightening 
without generating excess wage pressures. However, earnings 
growth has remained subdued in recent periods, and indeed 
relapsed in Q2 2018. Some firms appear keen to limit their costs 
in an uncertain environment, while fragile consumer confidence is 
likely deterring workers from pushing hard for pay rises.

These consumer pressures are manifesting in many areas of 
the economy, and notably in the housing market. Caution over 
engaging in major transactions has seen mortgage approvals at 
approximately 18.1% below their long-term (1993–2018) average. 
Given the earnings squeeze, and the faltering demand for private 
housing, the important role of social housing is likely to persist. 
There were 1.2 million households on a waiting list for social 
housing in England on 1 April 2017, exhibiting the significant 
excess demand. As a result, the announcement by the Government 
to scrap the HRA borrowing cap is welcome, and should go some 
way to meeting demand in the market.

As Brexit beckons, what is the impact that 
local authorities can expect across the UK?
With increasing focus on a potential extension to the Brexit 
transitionary period and the likelihood of a ‘no-deal’ scenario 
failing to diminish, local authorities are beginning to prepare for an 
array of potential impacts from the UK’s departure from the EU. 
We look below at some of the key focus areas for local government 
in assessing the impact of Brexit.

The impact on social care provision:
The social care workforce is particularly susceptible to the impact 
of Brexit. Since the referendum in 2016, there has already been a 
decrease in the number of EU nationals taking jobs in the UK social 
care sector, and this is likely to be squeezed further with the end of 
freedom of movement. This has the potential to lead to labour cost 
inflation, increasing the financial pressure facing local authorities. 

The effects described above will be exacerbated further due to 
challenges in the healthcare system. The NHS is similarly likely to 
suffer to workforce challenges and hence, funding challenges. This 
has the potential to increase the pressure on hospitals to discharge 
early, increasing the burden on the social care system’s capacity. 
The government’s winter crisis cash pledge to the system, is 
unlikely to mitigate such challenges.

The impact on supply chains and logistics:
Some coastal local authorities may face years of road traffic 
issues if border checks are applied following Brexit; authorities in 
the South East likely to be most significantly affected, due to the 
potential of border checks being applied at Dover.

Furthermore, investigations have been made by authorities such 
as Pembrokeshire Council into the ready availability of food and 
medicine in the event of road blockages and closures. Additionally, 
local authorities are struggling to make plans around international 
trade, as they await information on charges and how long waiting 
times at ports are likely to be. This is particularly important in the 
case of livestock and fresh foods being transported.

Changes to customs unions and physical borders may reduce the 
availability and increase the price of key goods required by local 
authorities, including adult social care supplies.

Consumer demand:
Brexit will impact the wider economy, and hence local authorities 
will need to be attuned to the impact on their local economies.

Brexit uncertainty is already beginning to influence the high street 
and local authorities need to consider the prospect of increasing 
voids. Furthermore, local economies that are heavily dependent on 
certain sectors that are vulnerable to the impact of Brexit, such as 
financial services and agriculture, may bear a greater brunt of the 
economic shock that Brexit may cause.

Local authorities may also be impacted more directly, especially 
those authorities that have embarked enthusiastically on 
commercial property investments, thereby creating direct 
exposure to certain sectors, especially the retail sector. In respect 
of this, CIPFA have issued a warning to councils outlining concerns 
over their commercial activity, suggesting that some have been 
guilty of putting public funds at ‘unnecessary or unquantified risk’. 
Councils need to evaluate the proposed impact that they were 
hoping such investments may have on their financial position, 
along with other trading activity, in light of the potential economic 
impact of Brexit.

Impact on property and agricultural land prices.
Predictions that property prices in general are likely to fall 
following Brexit are well documented. Bank of England Governor 
Mark Carney has stated that UK house prices may fall by up to a 
third in the event of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit. 

Page 33



4 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

A reduction in property prices may not be perceived to be a bad 
outcome for all. Furthermore, the government’s HRA borrowing 
cap announcement has the potential to allow councils to increase 
the supply of housing, further supporting a challenged housing 
market. However, such a reduction in property values is likely to 
create a shock that may create financial hardship for many as well 
as impacting the performance of certain sectors.

Budget 2018
On 29 October 2018 the Chancellor delivered the 2018 Autumn 
Budget to Parliament. Among the headline policy announcements, 
such as a new 2% tax on revenue for large digital companies, 
changes to the income tax threshold bands, and increase in 
funding to help departments prepare for Brexit, there were a 
number of announcements that will have a direct impact on local 
authorities. These key announcements include:

 ► Immediate abolition of the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) cap which restricts local authority borrowing for 
house building.

 ► £675mn Investment in the Future High Street Fund created 
to support local areas prepare long term strategies for their 
high streets and town centres, including investment in physical 
infrastructure. As part of this announcement, small retail 
businesses will see a 33% decrease in business rates and 
public lavatories will receive 100% business rate relief after 
April 2019.

 ► Increased staff costs for local authorities; as the national living 
wage is set to increase by 5% from £7.83 to £8.21 an hour.

 ► Allocation of additional £420mn to local authorities in 2018/19 
to tackle potholes and repair damaged roads.

 ► Local authorities in England will receive a further £650mn in 
social care funding.

CIPFA’s response to the budget was that while the additional short 
term support for the provision of services is welcomed, there are 
greater long term challenges that need to be addressed to embed 
sustainable funding. The July 2018 OBR’s (OBR) projection, upon 
which the budget was based, forecasts that within 50 years the UK 
will not be able to afford anything more than debt interest, health, 

social care and pension payments. CIPFA is clear that there is not 
sufficient funding to sustain expectations of public services at the 
current levels of taxation.

The Local Government Association (LGA) analysis has estimated 
that local services face a funding gap of £7.8bn by 2024/25; the 
funding gap as of 2019/20 is estimated to be £3.9bn. The services 
where there are the greatest funding pressures include social care, 
homelessness and public health. However, the growing demand 
for these services has detrimentally impacted on other services 
that help maintain local communities including libraries, roads and 
welfare support.

An unexpected announcement made by Government during the 
budget was that it will no longer use Private Finance Initiative (PFI) 
schemes, or its successor PF2, because PFI schemes have been 
identified by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) as a source 
of significant fiscal risk to the Government. It is unclear if this 
decision by central Government will impact on local authorities in 
future years.

CIPFA Investment Guidance
The media spotlight and public scrutiny surrounding local 
government finances has increased significantly over the past 
year due to increased pressures to deliver services from reduced 
funding. To help authorities better manage their finances CIPFA 
is updating its guidance on Treasury Management. The new key 
principle of guidance will be that ‘Local authorities must not 
borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed’. 

During 2017/18 the rate at which English councils acquired land 
and buildings increased by 43% to a total of £4bn; whereas total 
borrowing increased from £4bn to £10bn (127 %). As such there 
is a growing concern that too many local authorities are investing 
heavily in commercial property at a rate that is disproportionate 
to their available resources. This exposes public funds to 
unquantified risks. This stands against the primary objective of 
a local authority’s treasury management strategy to safeguard 
public money.

Page 34



5Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Accounting, 
auditing and 
governance

IFRS 9: Statutory Override update
The 2018/19 financial year will be the first year where the 
accounting standard IFRS 9 will be implemented by local 
government. IFRS 9 impacts on an authority’s financial assets: 
the investments it holds; the amounts it has lent to others; and 
other monetary based assets it may have. It changes how these 
financial assets are classified and how movements in their value 
are accounted for. It also changes how these assets are impaired; 
based on the risk that the assets may not be recovered in full, 
or at all. 

Following a consultation by the Ministry for Housing Communities 
and Local Government on the impact of IFRS 9, an initial statutory 
override has been granted for five years, despite 90% stakeholders 
opposing a time-limited period. This statutory override means that 
councils will still be required to account for fair value movements 
in financial instruments (in accordance with proper practices as 
set out in the code on local authority accounting); however these 
movements will not be charged to the revenue account. 

The result of which is that statutory override will remove the 
potential burden that council tax payers or local authorities may 
have faced if fair value movements were unfavourable. 

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
The Government undertakes a valuation of public service pension 
schemes every four years, this year sees the first full assessment 
of these since the introduction of reformed schemes in 2015. 

The Chief Secretary to the Treasury has stated that early 
indications would suggest that employers’ contribution will need 
to increase as a result of a proposed decrease in the discount 
rate. The discount rate, known as the SCAPE rate, is based on 
the OBR projection of the short-term pay growth in terms of 
GDP. OBR has reduced this rate from 3.0% to 2.8% in 2016 and 
a further reduction has been proposed as of April 2019 to 2.4%. 
This discount rate is used to calculate the current costs of future 
payments and as the discount rate decreases, the pension liability 
increases. Given that employee rates are effectively fixed under 
scheme regulations, employer contributions will need to increase 
to meet the increased liability. Further details are to be announced 
later in the year in addition to further discussion taken forward as 
part of the spending review. 

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
For the public to gain trust and confidence in public spending, 
a framework of accountability, transparency, governance and 
ethics needs to be built. The ultimate responsibility lies with the 
government departments that delegate spending to local public 
bodies. These public bodies must then be able to demonstrate that 
the money has been spent efficiently and effectively. 

One way the public can gain trust in public spending, is by relying 
on the external audit process to provide assurance on the financial 
statements and report by exception on the arrangements the 

Page 35



6 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

public body has in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. However, the role of audit, is often misunderstood 
creating the audit expectation gap which is the difference between 
what an auditor actually does, as required by legislation and 
auditing standards, and what stakeholders think that the auditors’ 
obligations might be and what they might do. 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW) produced a report to raise awareness on the expectation 
gap and suggest some possible solutions. The report also 
discusses how issues faced by local public bodies such as financial 
difficulties, increasing demand from an ageing population, 
complex structures and weaknesses of accountability impacts the 
audit process and widens the expectation gap.

Some common concerns were noted in the report by 
interviews with Chief Financial Officers in different sectors and 
regulatory bodies:

1. Local authorities and health bodies are facing a difficult time 
with increasing pressure to deliver more services, become 
innovative and commercial with reduced financial support. This 
pressure could bring in concerns about behaviours that may 
not be in the best long-term interests of the public.

2. Reports produced by auditors are not being fully utilised by 
management and audit committees to build on successes and 
make improvements within the body where recommendations 
have been made.

3. Auditors are concerned that qualifications and issues identified 
in their opinions are not taken seriously enough by those 
charged with governance.

4. The reduction in audit fees has led to a perception by 
local bodies that they are receiving reduced scope of work 
compared to the previous regime (Audit Commission). 
The concerns are not in relation to compliance with auditing 
standards, but rather the lack of value added activities that 
was previously provided. 

5. Chief Financial Officers expect more challenge and review 
of their forward-looking plans which underpin the financial 
resilience of the authority.

6. Other stakeholders are not getting sufficient assurance over 
the effectiveness of service delivery and performance in 
auditors’ work.

7. Increased regulation and scrutiny against the reduced number 
of auditor firms in the local government market.

8. Local public auditors’ power being limited by the removal of 
indemnity insurance and increased difficulty to recover costs.

The ICAEW has offered a number of potential solutions in the 
report to close this expectation gap including:

1. Chief Financial Officers could consider involving external 
support to assist them in their financial resilience work, such as 
challenging their budget assumptions and other key decision 
making factors, instead of relying on external auditors to 
provide other value added activities, as these may have some 
independence restrictions.

2. More broadly, consideration could be given to widen 
the scope of the audit to include for example a greater 
future-looking focus.

Page 36



7Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Regulation 
news

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
PSAA (Public Sector Accounts Appointments) has reported 
its annual summary on the timeliness and quality of financial 
reporting in relation to audits for the 2017/18 financial year. 
A total of 431 (87 %) local government and fire authorities 
published their audited accounts by the deadline of 3 July 2018. 
2017/18 was the first year that the accounts and audit deadline 
was brought forward from the 30 September to the 31 July. 
PSAA’s Chief Officer stated that whilst these results were 
encouraging and reflect considerable efforts of both local 
government finance staff and auditors, there is still more work to 
be done in order for 100% of authorities to meet the new deadline. 

The number of qualified ‘Value for Money’ conclusions is 
currently at 7% (compared to 8% for 2016/17); however there 
30 conclusions still to be issued for 2017/18. The most common 
reasons for issuing a qualified Value for Money conclusion were 
corporate governance issues, financial stability concerns and 
contract management issues. 

Page 37



8 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Other

EY 2018 Transparency Report
Our profession has come under scrutiny from policymakers and 
other stakeholders over the year, and the need for transparency 
has never been greater. Increasingly, the public is expecting more 
and more from the audit than its current remit requires. This 
difference is known as the ‘audit expectation gap’ which has been 
discussed above. We believe the time is right for all concerned in 
the corporate control ecosystem to seize the moment and consider 
deeply what society expects from businesses and the assurance it 
needs over their activity.

It’s in our interests and the public’s for EY UK to be as open and 
transparent as possible. The Transparency Report goes some 
way towards helping us achieve this, while also providing an 
opportunity to share a more balanced perspective on what we 

do and how we perform as a business. For example, it refers to 
our role in building trust and confidence in the capital markets 
and wider economies, by maintaining and developing positive 
relationships with our stakeholders. It explains what we do to make 
a difference to people’s lives by helping to improve social mobility 
in the UK. It also shows how our people are supported in their role 
as auditors by making reference to our tools, technologies and 
training programmes. Details on internal and external surveys and 
inspections are included as well, to show how we are performing 
against our own expectations and — most importantly — those of 
our regulators.

We refer to this report in our audit planning reports to audit 
committees, and we summarise the key headlines below.

Page 38



9Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

The result of the FRC’s most recent review of out audits showed 
that 82% of our FTSE 350 audits were graded as requiring no 
more than limited improvement, against a 90% target. Overall 
67% of all EY UK’s audits inspected were graded as requiring no 
more than limited improvements. We are proud of the progress 
we have made in the UK since the launch of UK Sustainable Audit 
Quality (SAQ) programme a few years ago. But there is still more 
work to be done to consider audit quality from the viewpoint 
of key stakeholders: investors, audit committees, companies, 
regulators and our people. The work we have done to model the 
behaviours of our highest performing teams, using cognitive 
psychologists, will continue. In the year ahead we will prioritise 
the extent and consistency of the model’s adoption. We aim to 
transform the behaviours that feature in the model into business-
as-usual activity across all of our audit teams.

As organisations become more complex, so do audits, making 
access to different skills and capabilities more important than 
ever. The traditional audit has already been transformed by the 
use of technology and digital platforms, and the pace of change 
will only accelerate. These new capabilities enable us to search, 
sift and sort through large quantities of data, allowing us to 
identify potential areas of risk and understand an organisation’s 
performance at a more granular level. The audit process is 
becoming more forward looking, with a focus on anticipating 
future risks. Our new capabilities are also providing insights 
into areas that were once thought to be impossible to measure, 
such as culture.

This unprecedented scrutiny and demand for change, can be seen 
as an incredible opportunity to focus our efforts on addressing the 
root cause, deliver sustainable high quality audit and gain the trust 
and confidence in the capital markets society needs and demands. 

2018 Highlights
Audit quality

Page 39



10 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Key questions for the Audit Committee
2018 Budget
How has the 2018 Budget impacted the local authority’s 
financial plans for the current year and the year ahead?

CIPFA Investment Guidance
How much is your authority dependent on commercial 
investment income to fund services? 

What governance structures are in place to ensure that the 
authority’s borrowing is proportionate to its need and level 
of resources?

IFRS 9: Statutory Override
Have you considered the impact of the new IFRS 9 accounting 
standard? How will you plan for the possibility that the 
statutory override will end in five years’ time? 

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
Have you taken into account the impact of the most recent 
review of the public sector pension scheme on your budgets 
and medium term financial position?

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
How far do you recognise the issues of the ICAEW report 
on the expectations gap in local public audit? What is your 
perspective on the value that external audit provides?

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
What lessons have you learnt from the earlier accounts 
and audit deadlines in 2017/18? Are you confident that 
these lessons will be applied for the 2018/19 accounts and 
audit process?

Find out more

EY Club Item
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/
financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-
projections

2018 Budget
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-
you-need-to-know

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018 

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-
releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/
Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20
Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf

CIPFA Investment Guidance
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-
guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-
public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-
expectations-gap

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/
policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

IFRS 9: Statutory Override
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-
last-five-years

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_
Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/
written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/
Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-
auditors-work/

EY Transparency Report 2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-
report-2018

https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-
transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf

Page 40

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf


11Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 41



12 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 42



13Local Government Audit Committee Briefing

Notes

Page 43



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. 
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and confidence 
in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We develop 
outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of our 
stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of 
the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a 
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information 
about our organization, please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2018 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000083110.indd (UK) 12/18. Artwork by Creative Services Group London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its impact on the environment, this document 
has been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects covered. 
It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it 
be used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for any loss 
arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

Page 44


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 RISK MANAGEMENT
	8a - Strategic Risks November 2018
	8b - Appendix B Top Operational Risks
	51
	79
	122
	129
	133
	165
	231


	9 SHARED INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE - PROGRESS REPORT
	11 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT COMMITTEE BRIEFING - QUARTER 4 DECEMBER 2018

